Senators and Representatives of the Ways & Means, General Government Subcommittee,

I am this providing information in response to the request of Representative Nathanson at this morning's budget hearing for the Oregon board of Tax Practitioners.

Here is a link to the November 10, 2011 Board's minutes where the board approved the change to accept sponsors of correspondence and/or self-study continuing education courses not specifically approved by the Board. See page 4 of the minutes, Administrative Rules, 3rd bullet. http://www.oregon.gov/OBTP/docs/board_meeting_minutes/11-10-11_board_minutes.pdf

I am also including below the Administrative Rule where this provision was added. The administrative rule became effective February 1, 2011. This has been a very positive change for the board eliminating duplicative effort. I have highlighted the affected text in yellow for your benefit.

800-015-0010

Continuing Education

- (1) Except for renewal of an initial license, a Licensed Tax Consultant or Licensed Tax Preparer renewing a license shall attest on the renewal to have completed at least 30 hours of acceptable continuing education since the last renewal date.
 - (2) Each licensee shall report compliance with the continuing education requirements on the license renewal document. Licensees shall be subject to the provisions of OAR 800-015-0015 pertaining to the periodic audit of continuing education.
- (3) Proof of participation in required continuing education is the responsibility of the licensee. To ensure that proof of attainment of required continuing education is available for audit or investigation by the Board, licensees shall maintain certificates for at least four (4) years following each continuing education cycle and renewal of the tax practitioner license.
 - (4) Continuing education credit will be accepted only for courses and seminars that comply with all Board rules regarding continuing education.
 - (5) The Board may verify continuing education information submitted by licensees.
- (6) Education hours earned in excess of 30 hours annually cannot be carried over from one renewal period to the next, except extra hours earned during the month of renewal not claimed on that renewal may be submitted with the following year's renewal.
- (7) Continuing education credit shall be granted only once during a license year for attendance at or instruction of duplicate seminars offered by the same sponsor or instructor.
- (8) Continuing education credit for courses at accredited universities and colleges will be 15 hours for each semester hour credit and ten (10) hours for each quarter hour credit. For all other courses and seminars, one (1) hour of continuing education credit will be allowed for each hour of classroom attendance.
- (9) Continuing education credit may be accepted for instructors of basic or advanced courses or seminars. The credit allowed will be two (2) hours for each hour of teaching, which includes preparation time. No more than 1/2 of total required continuing education credit can be in teaching.

- (10) Correspondence and online study courses may be accepted if the program and sponsor comply with all Board rules regarding continuing education and:
- (a) The sponsor requires evidence of satisfactory completion of workbooks or examinations before certificates are issued.
 - (b) The hours credited do not exceed the credit that would be allowed in a resident course covering the same material; and
- (c) A course outline with accompanying workbooks or exams is submitted to the Board, prior to offering the material, for approval of course content and hours of credit claimed, if not already approved by California Tax Education Council (CTEC), Internal Revenue Service (IRS), National Association of State Boards of Accountancy (NASBA), or courses by such other sponsors as may be approved by the Board.
- (11) "In-Company" instruction may be accepted if the course or seminar is presented to ten (10) or more people and all other requirements for continuing education sponsors are met. Portions of such educational sessions devoted to administrative and firm matters shall not be accepted.
- (12) If a licensee claims credit for a course or seminar in the reasonable belief the instruction qualifies as acceptable continuing education, but the Board finds all or part of the hours claimed to be unacceptable, the licensee may be granted an additional period of time, not to exceed 60 calendar days, to make up the rejected hours.
- (13) Licensed Tax Consultants and Licensed Tax Preparers who have extenuating circumstances and are unable to obtain all their continuing education by their license due dates may make application, by completing a form prescribed by the Board, for a waiver of continuing education hours.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 673.645 - 673.667

Please let me know if you have additional questions.

Sincerely,

Ron Wagner

Executive Director
Oregon State Board of Tax Practitioners
503-378-4733
ron.a.wagner@state.or.us

